

INDIAN HIGHWAYS MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL(RFP)

FOR

Conducting Traffic Survey on Selected Toll Plazas using Portable Automatic Traffic Counter & Classifier (ATCC) system alongwith Videography

RFP Reference No.: IHMCL/Portable-ATCC/2020/01

Indian Highways Management Company Limited (IHMCL)
Sector-19, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075

DISCLAIMER

The information contained in this document or subsequently provided to Bidder(s), whether verbally or in documentary or any other form by or on behalf of IHMCL or any of its employees or advisors, is provided to Bidder(s) on the terms and conditions set out in this document and such other terms and conditions subject to which such information is provided.

This document is not an agreement and is neither an offer nor invitation by IHMCL to the prospective Bidders or any other person. The purpose of this document is to provide interested parties with information that may be useful to them in making their technical/ financial offers ("Bid(s)") pursuant to this document. This document includes statements, which reflect various assumptions and assessments arrived at by IHMCL in relation to the Project. Such assumptions, assessments, and statements do not purport to contain all the information that each Bidder may require. This document may not be appropriate for all persons, and it is not possible for IHMCL, its employees or advisors to consider the investment objectives, financial situation, and particular needs of each party who reads or uses this document. The assumptions, assessments, statements and information contained in this document, may not be complete, accurate, adequate or correct. Each Bidder should, therefore, conduct its own investigations and analysis and should check the accuracy, adequacy, correctness, reliability, and completeness of the assumptions, assessments, statements, and information contained in this document and obtains independent advice from appropriate sources.

Information provided in this document to the Bidder(s) is on a wide range of matters, some of which may depend upon interpretation of law. The information given is not intended to be an exhaustive account of statutory requirements and should not be regarded as a complete or authoritative statement of law. IHMCL accepts no responsibility for the accuracy or otherwise for any interpretation or opinion on law expressed herein.

IHMCL, its employees and advisors make no representation or warranty and shall have no liability to any person, including any applicant or Bidder under any law, statute, rules or regulations or tort, principles of restitution or unjust enrichment or otherwise for any loss, damages, cost or expense which may arise from or be incurred or suffered on account of anything contained in this document or otherwise, including the accuracy, adequacy, correctness, completeness or reliability of the document and any assessment, assumption, statement or information contained therein or deemed to form part of this document or arising in any way for participation in this Bid.

IHMCL also accepts no liability of any nature whether resulting from negligence or otherwise howsoever caused arising from reliance of any Bidder upon the statements contained in this document. IHMCL may in its absolute discretion, but without being under any obligation to do so,

update, amend, or supplement the information, assessment or assumptions contained in this document.

The issue of this document does not imply that IHMCL is bound to select a Bidder or to appoint the Successful Bidder for the Project and IHMCL reserves the right to reject all or any of the Bidders or Bids without assigning any reason whatsoever.

The Bidder shall bear all their costs associated with or relating to the preparation and submission of their Bid including but not limited to preparation, copying, postage, delivery fees, expenses associated with any demonstrations or presentations which may be required by IHMCL or any other costs incurred in connection with or relating to Bid. All such costs and expenses will remain with the Bidder and IHMCL shall not be liable in any manner whatsoever for the same or for any other costs or other expenses incurred by a Bidder in preparation or submission of the Bid, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

DOCUMENT COMPOSITION

This document comprises of the following parts:

PART - I : Letter of Invitation

PART - II : Schedule of the Tender

PART - III: Instructions to Bidders

PART - IV: Scope of Work

PART - V : Conditions of Contract

PART - VI: Annexure

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART – I: I	LETTER OF INVITATION	7
1. INT	RODUCTION	7
1.1	General Information	8
1.2	Definitions	
DADT II.	SCHEDULE OF THE TENDER (Key Dates)	
	: INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS	
3. BID	CONDITIONS	14
3.1	Information	
3.2	Bidding Fees	
3.3	General	
3.4	Pre-Bid Meeting	19
3.5	Preparation of Proposal	20
3.6	Submission, receipt and opening of proposals	21
3.7	Imbalanced Bid	
3.8	Process To Be Confidential	
3.9	Clarification and amendment of RFP documents	26
3.10	Eligibility Of Bidder	27
3.11	Award of Contract	30
3.12	Payment Terms	31
3.13	PERFORMANCE SECURITY	32
3.14	BANK GUARANTEE (BG)	32
3.15	Corrupt or Fraudulent Practices	33
3.16	Miscellaneous	33
3.17	Important timeline/KEY TiMELINE	34
PART – IV:	SCOPE OF WORK	35
4.1	Background	35
4.2	Traffic Survey Assignment	
4.3	Key Personnel	
4.4	ATCC System	
4.5	The System:	
4.6	DELIVERABLES:	
4.7	Traffic Survey Zones / Locations	
4.8	Miscellaneous	
4.9	Obligations of Agency	
4.10	DAMAGES	
PART - V:	CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	40
	ANNEXURE	
Annexui	re A: Covering Letter	53
	re D: Bidder's Annual Turnover	
Annexui	re E: Power of Attorney	59

Annexure F: Format for Power of Attorney for Lead Member of Consortium	61
Annexure G: Format for Performance Security (Bank Guarantee)	62
Annexure H: Format for Financial Bid Submission	
Annexure J: Format for Non-Disclosure Agreement	69

PART - I: LETTER OF INVITATION

1. INTRODUCTION

IHMCL is a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 with equity participation from NHAI, various concessionaires of NHAI projects and financial institutions for implementation of Electronic Toll Collection and other Intelligent Transportation System and allied works in road transport sector in India.

MoRTH/NHAI has mandated IHMCL to carry out comprehensive traffic surveys on national highways in India, which would include conducting traffic surveys using portable Automatic Vehicle Counter and Classifier (ATCC) systems, and creating central repository of traffic data for auditing, compilation and analysis of data generated from traffic surveys.

In that direction, IHMCL invites bids from eligible agencies to conduct traffic survey using portable Automatic Traffic Counter-cum-Classifiers (ATCC) on selected toll plaza for a continuous period of 2 months which may be extended on monthly basis upto maximum of additional 6 months. List of toll plaza is given in Annexure-H.

1.1 GENERAL INFORMATION

a) Bids are invited by the Indian Highways Management Company Limited (IHMCL) for the following:

Name of the Work	Document	EMD (Earnest	Closing date
	Fee(non-	Money Deposit)	and time
	refundable)		
Selection of Agency	INR 5,000/- (INR	INR 10,00,000/-	18 th March
for Conducting	Five Thousand)	(INR Ten Lakh)	2020 (Upto
Traffic Survey on	Non-refundable		15:00 Hrs IST)
National Highways			
Toll Plaza using			
portable Automatic			
Traffic Counter &			
Classifier (ATCC)			
systems alongwith			
Videography			

- b) All clarifications/ corrigendum will be published only on the e-procurement portal http://etenders.gov.in, IHMCL website www.ihmcl.co.in
- c) The complete Bidding Documents can be viewed / downloaded from e-procurement portal http://etenders.gov.in. The Bids shall be liable for summarily rejection unless accompanied by the requisite EMD and bid document fee as indicated above. IHMCL

shall not be responsible for any postal delay. Bids submitted after the closing date/time shall be summarily rejected.

- d) The eligibility criteria of the agency/service provider are elaborated in subsequent pages.
- e) The time period of the project is 02 months and shall start from the date of signing of Contract Agreement or Letter of Commencement Issued by IHMCL (Post PBG verification). Upon completion of 02 months, IHMCL may consider extending the engagement on monthly basis upto a maximum of 6 months from the date of signing of Contract Agreement with same "Final Cost" as quoted by the Bidder for the RFP.

1.2 Definitions

In this document, the following terms shall have respective meanings as indicated:

"Applicable Law" means the laws, rules or regulations and any other instruments, having the force of law in Republic of India, as in force from time to time.

"Authorized Representative" means any person/agency authorized by IHMCL.

"Bidder" means, a company which participates in the Bid process and submits its proposal pursuant to this RFP.

"Commencement date" means the date upon which the Service Provider receives the notice to commence the work issued by IHMCL.

"Contract" shall mean & include RFP, Notice for Inviting Tender (NIT), the tender documents and letter of acceptance thereof and the formal agreement, to be executed between IHMCL and the Service Provider together with the complete documents referred to therein including the conditions with appendices and any special conditions, the specifications, designs, drawings, bill of quantities with rates and amounts. All these documents taken together shall be deemed to form one Contract and shall be complementary to each other

"IHMCL" means Indian Highways Management Company Ltd.

"Law" or "Legislation" - shall mean any Act, notification, bye law, rules and regulations, directive, ordinance, order or instruction having the force of law enacted or issued by the Government of India or State Government or regulatory authority.

"Letter of Award (LOA)" means the issue of a signed letter by IHMCL to Sucsessful Bidder conveying its intention to accept the offer of Successful Bidder and awarding the work mentioning the total Contract Value.

"Local Currency" means the Indian Rupees

"MoRTH" means Ministry of Road Transport and Highways

"NHAI" means National Highways Authority of India ..

"Party" shall mean IHMCL or Bidder individually and "Parties" shall mean IHMCL and Bidder collectively.

"Personnel" means persons hired by the Service Provider as employees and assigned to the performance of the Services or any part thereof.

"Final Cost" shall be the financial cost quoted by successful bidder/L1 bidder.

"RFP" shall mean this Request for Proposal issued by IHMCL on dated 11.03.2020.

"Services" means requirements defined in this RFP including all additional services associated thereto to be delivered by the Successful Bidder.

"Successful Bidder" means the Bidder, who, after the complete evaluation process, has been issued the Letter of Award by IHMCL

"Service Provider" means the Successful Bidder who has executed the contract with IHMCL and has complied with other requirements as specified in this RFP to the satisfaction of IHMCL

Any other term(s), not defined herein above but defined elsewhere in this RFP shall have the meaning(s) ascribed to such term(s) therein and shall be deemed to have been included in this Section.

PART - II: SCHEDULE OF THE TENDER (KEY DATES)

SI. No.	Event Description	Key Dates / Time
1.	Invitation of RFP	11.03.2020
2.	Last date for receiving queries	13.03.2020
3.	Pre-Bid meeting at IHMCL	16.03.2020 at 11:00 AM
4.	IHMCL to response to queries latest by	17.03.2020
5.	Bid Due Date	18.03.2020 till 11.00 Hrs
6.	Physical submission of Bid Security/ Power of Attorney etc.	18.03.2020 by 12:00 Hrs
7.	Opening of Technical Bids	19.03.2020 on 11:00 Hrs
8.	Declaration eligible / qualified Bidders	within 15 days from Bid Due Date
9.	Opening of Financial Bid	within 20 days from Bid Due Date
10.	Letter of Award (LOA)	Within 30 days of Bid Due Date
11.	Validity of Bid	180 days from Bid Due Date
12.	Signing of Agreement	Within 45 days of award of LOA

Page 13 of 74

PART – III: INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

3. BID CONDITIONS

3.1 INFORMATION

The Bidders are invited to submit Technical, and Financial Proposals (collectively called as "The Proposal"), as specified in this RFP, for providing "Selection of Vendor for managing IHMCL wallet". Details on the format(s) of submission and list of necessary supporting documents are provided in following sections. The term "Bidder" refers to the entity participating in this bidding. The Proposal will form the basis for contract signing with the selected bidder.

Website for accessing RFP is http://etenders.gov.in. The Bidders shall submit the proposal as per criteria laid down in the RFP. The tender process timelines are mentioned in the section – "Part – II: Schedule of the Tender".

3.2 BIDDING FEES

- a. <u>Document Fee:</u> The document fee shall be submitted, as a part of the proposal, in the form of Bank Draft of INR 5,000/- (INR Five Thousand only) from a scheduled Indian Bank approved by RBI drawn in favour of "Indian Highways Management Company Limited" payable at New Delhi, India, as a non-refundable processing fee. Proposals not containing the document fees will be rejected.
- **b. Bid Security/Earnest Money Deposit (EMD):** The bid security/Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) for a sum of INR10,00,000/- (INR Ten Lakh) shall be submitted, as a part of the proposal, in the form of a Demand Draft, from a scheduled Indian Bank approved by RBI drawn in favour of "Indian Highways Management Company Limited", valid up to 180 (one hundred and eighty) days from the date of receipt of proposal, payable at New Delhi. Proposals not containing the earnest money deposit will be rejected.

IHMCL will not be liable to pay any interest on bid security deposits. Bid security of technically qualified but unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned, without any interest, within two months after acceptance of LOA by selected Bidder or when the selection process is cancelled by the IHMCL. The Successful Bidder's Bid Security shall be returned, without any interest, post the Successful Bidder signing the contract and furnishing the Performance Security in accordance with provisions of the RFP and contract.

IHMCL will be entitled to forfeiture and appropriation of the bid security as mutually agreed loss and damage payable to IHMCL in regard to the RFP without prejudice to the IHMCL's any other right or remedy under the following conditions:

- (i) If a Bidder engages in a corrupt practice, fraudulent practice, coercive practice, undesirable practice or restrictive practice as envisaged under this RFP (including the Standard Form of Contract);
- (ii) If any Bidder withdraws its Proposal during the period of its validity as specified in this RFP and as extended by the Bidder from time to time,
- (iii) In the case of the Successful Bidder, if the Successful Bidder fails to sign the contract or provide the Performance Security within the specified time limit, or
- (iv) If the Bidder commits any breach of terms of this RFP or is found to have made a false representation to IHMCL.

3.3 GENERAL

IHMCL defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below:

a. IHMCL reserves the right to make inquiries with any of the Clients listed by the Bidders in their previous experience record. If it determines that the Bidder has, directly or indirectly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt practice, fraudulent practice, coercive practice, undesirable practice or restrictive practice (collectively the "Prohibited Practices") in the Selection Process, IHMCL will, without prejudice to its any other rights or remedies, consider forfeiture and appropriation of the Bid Security, as mutually agreed genuine pre-estimated compensation and damages payable to

IHMCL for, inter alia, time, cost and effort of IHMCL, in regard to the RFP, including consideration and evaluation of such Bidder's Proposal.

- b. IHMCL will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the Bidder has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent activities in competing for the contract in question.
- c. IHMCL will declare a Bidder ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded a contract if it at any time determines that the Bidder has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for and in executing the contract.
- d. For the purposes of this RFP, the following terms shall have the meaning hereinafter respectively assigned to them:
 - "Corrupt Practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence the action of any person connected with the Selection Process (for avoidance of doubt, offering of employment to or employing or engaging in any manner whatsoever, directly or indirectly, any official of IHMCL who is or has been associated in any manner, directly or indirectly with the Selection Process or the LOA or has dealt with matters concerning the Agreement or arising there from, before or after the execution thereof, at any time prior to the expiry of one year from the date such official resigns or retires from or otherwise ceases to be in the service of IHMCL, shall be deemed to constitute influencing the actions of a person connected with the Selection Process; or save as provided herein, engaging in any manner whatsoever, whether during the Selection Process or after the issue of the LOA or after the execution of the Agreement, as the case may be, any person in respect of any matter relating to the Project or the LOA or the Agreement, who at any time has been or is a legal, financial or technical consultant/adviser of IHMCL in relation to any matter concerning the Project;
 - (ii) "Fraudulent Practice" means a misrepresentation of facts in order to influence the selection process or the execution of a contract in a way which is

detrimental to IHMCL, and includes collusive practices among suppliers (prior to or after submission of proposals) detailed designed to establish prices at artificial, non-competitive levels and to deprive the IHMCL of the benefits of free and open competition.

- (iii) "Coercive practice" means impairing or harming or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any persons or property to influence any person's participation or action in the Selection Process;
- (iv) "Undesirable practice" means establishing contact with any person connected with or employed or engaged by IHMCL with the objective of canvassing, lobbying or in any manner influencing or attempting to influence the Selection Process; or having a Conflict of Interest;
- (v) "Restrictive practice" means forming a cartel or arriving at any understanding or arrangement among Bidders with the objective of restricting or manipulating a full and fair competition in the Selection Process.
- e. Confidentiality: Information relating to evaluation of proposals and recommendations concerning awards of contract shall not be disclosed to the Bidders who submitted the proposals or to other persons not officially concerned with the process, until the winning firm has been notified that it has been awarded the contract.
- f. Right to reject any or all Proposals:
 - (i) Notwithstanding anything contained in this RFP, IHMCL reserves the right to accept or reject any Proposal and to annul the Selection Process and reject all Proposals, at any time without any liability or any obligation for such acceptance, rejection or annulment, and without assigning any reasons thereof.
 - (ii) Without prejudice to the generality of above, IHMCL reserves the right to reject any Proposal if:
 - at any time, a material misrepresentation is made or discovered, or

- The Bidder does not provide, within the time specified by IHMCL, the supplemental information sought by IHMCL for evaluation of the Proposal.
- (iii) Such misrepresentation/improper response by the Bidder may lead to the disqualification of the Bidder. If such disqualification/rejection occurs after the Proposals have been opened and highest-ranking Bidder gets disqualified/rejected, then IHMCL reserves the right to consider the next best Bidder, or take any other measure as may be deemed fit in the sole discretion of IHMCL, including annulment of the Selection Process.
- g. The Bidder is required to follow the highest level of work ethics, if any member of the Bidder's organization has a Conflict of Interest or indulge in "Prohibited Practices"; the proposal is liable to be disqualified. Further, in the event any entity has been barred by the Central Government, any State Government, a statutory authority or a public sector undertaking, as the case may be, from participating in any project or bid, and the bar subsists as on the date of Proposal submission Date, it would not be eligible to submit a Proposal.
- h. Bidders shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of their proposals, and their participation in the Selection process, and presentation including but not limited to postage, delivery fees, expenses associated with any demonstrations or presentations which may be required by IHMCL or any other costs incurred in connection with or relating to its Proposal. The IHMCL is not bound to accept any Proposal, and reserves the right to annul the selection process at any time prior to Contract award, without thereby incurring any liability.
- i. After submission of the proposals by the Bidder, to the satisfaction of IHMCL, if clarifications are required or doubt arises as to the interpretation of anything included in the submitted documents, the bidder shall, on receipt of written request form IHMCL, furnish such clarification to the satisfaction of IHMCL within five (05) working days without any extra charge.

j. The Successful Bidder shall not accept or engage in any assignment that may place it in a position of not being able to carry out the assignment in the best interests of IHMCL and the Project.

k. Acknowledgement by Bidder:

- (i) It shall be deemed that by submitting the Proposal, the Bidder has:
 - made a complete and careful examination of the RFP;
 - accepted the risk of inadequacy, error or mistake in the information provided in the RFP or furnished by or on behalf of IHMCL;
 - satisfied itself about all matters, things and information, including matters herein above, necessary and required for submitting an informed Application and performance of all of its obligations there under;
 - acknowledged that it does not have a Conflict of Interest; and
 - agreed to be bound by the undertaking provided by it under and in term hereof.
- (ii) IHMCL and/ or its advisors/ consultants shall not be liable for any omission, mistake or error on the part of the Bidder in respect of any of the above or on account of any matter or thing arising out of or concerning or relating to RFP or the Selection Process, including any error or mistake therein or in any information or data given by IHMCL and/ or its advisors.

3.4 PRE-BID MEETING

- a. Pre-Bid Meeting of the Bidders will be convened at the designated date, time as specified in the Key Dates at IHMCL Office. A maximum of two representatives of each Bidder will be allowed to participate on production of an authorization letter from the Bidder.
- b. The Bidders who are interested in attaining the pre-bid meeting should confirm IHMCL about the participation one day prior to the schedule. The confirmation can be sent to <u>tenders@ihmcl.com</u>.

c. During the course of Pre-Bid Meeting, the Bidders will be free to seek clarifications and make suggestions for consideration of IHMCL. IHMCL will endeavour to provide clarifications and such further information as it may, in its sole discretion, consider appropriate for facilitating a fair, transparent and competitive selection process.

3.5 PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL

- a. Bidders are requested to submit their Proposal in English language and strictly in the formats provided in this RFP. IHMCL will evaluate only those Proposals that are received in the specified forms and complete in all respects.
- b. In preparing their Proposal, Bidders are expected to thoroughly examine the RFP Document. Material deficiencies in providing the information requested may result in rejection of a Proposal.
- c. Client certifications or Purchase orders for the projects listed under the experience section: The certifications and/or PO must confirm the project attributes (size, fee, duration etc.) and the scope of work of the projects. The self-certification of the Bidder is also permitted accompanied by certified copy of work order/document certifying release of performance bank guarantee/ certified copy of payment received or any other document certifying the completion/part completion of the project as the case may be.
- d. The technical proposal must not include any information on the financial bid.
- e. Failure to comply with the requirements spelt out in this RFP shall lead to the disqualification of the bidder.
- f. Bidders should note the Proposal Due Date, as specified in the section "Part II: Schedule of the Tender", for submission of Proposals. Except as specifically provided in this RFP, no supplementary material will be entertained by IHMCL, and that evaluation will be carried out only on the basis of Documents received by the closing time of Proposal Due Date as specified in the section "Part II: Schedule of the Tender". Bidders will ordinarily not be asked to provide additional material information or documents subsequent to the date of submission, and unsolicited material if submitted will be summarily rejected. For the avoidance of doubt, IHMCL reserves the right to seek clarifications in case the proposal is non-responsive on any aspects.

- g. The Financial Proposal should be inclusive of all the costs including applicable taxes, duties, levies, permit, fees, entry fees, manpower, transportation charges, equipment insurance fees, custom duty, handling charges etc., except the Goods and Services Tax (GST) which shall be paid as per applicable rates. While submitting the Financial Proposal on eportal, the Bidder shall ensure the following:
 - (i) All the costs associated with the Assignment shall be included in the Financial Proposal.
 - (ii) The total amount indicated in the Financial Proposal shall be without any condition attached or subject to any assumption, and shall be final and binding. In case any assumption or condition is indicated in the Financial Proposal, it shall be considered non-responsive and liable to be rejected.
 - (iii) The proposal should be submitted on e-tender portal as per the standard Financial Proposal submission forms prescribed in this RFP.
 - (iv) Bidders shall express the price in Indian Rupees.
 - (v) Bidders must do their due diligence about the tax implications and IHMCL will not be liable for any incident.
- h. The Proposals must remain valid for a period of 180 days from date of submission of proposal. During this period, the selected bidder is expected to keep available the professional staff proposed for the assignment. If IHMCL wishes to extend the validity period of the proposals, it may ask the bidders to extend the validity of their proposals for a stated period. The bidder will be required to extend the validity period without any additional financial implication to IHMCL.

3.6 SUBMISSION, RECEIPT AND OPENING OF PROPOSALS

a. IHMCL has adopted the following process (referred to as the "Bidding Process") for selection of the qualified Bidder. All documents need to be submitted on e-tender portal. If any documents are to be submitted physically (certificate, forms, drafts, Power of Attorney etc.) they have to be submitted at the following address as per schedule defined it the RFP

General Manager,

Indian Highways Management Company Limited.

2nd Floor, MTNL Building, Sector-19, Dwarka,

New Delhi – 110075

Phone: 011-20427810

Email: tenders@ihmcl.com

b. Opening of Physical Documents

- Physical Documents submitted will be opened as per schedule defined under key dates at IHMCL office.
- ii. Bidder's authorized representative may attend the opening, and those who are present shall sign the Attendance Sheet evidencing their attendance.
- iii. The Bidder's names, bid modifications or withdrawals and such other details as IHMCL at its discretion, may consider appropriate, will be announced at the time of opening.
- iv. Physical Documents shall be opened first and based upon the evaluation of these documents as per conditions specified in the RFP, IHMCL shall announce the names of the Bidders who have qualified for opening of Financial Bids. It is hereby clarified that Financial Bids of only such Bidders who are declared qualified as stated herein shall be opened.

c. Examination and Evaluation of Bids

- i. Any time during the process of evaluation, IHMCL may seek for clarifications from any or all Bidders. Failure of any Bidder to provide the required clarifications within the stipulated timeline may result in rejection of its Bid, at the sole discretion of IHMCL.
- ii. Phase-1: Physical Evaluation:

The following documents shall be verified as part of physical evaluation

(i) Document fee: - The document fee (non-refundable) of Rs. 5,000/-(Rupees Five Thousand only) in the form of a demand draft drawn in favour of "Indian Highways Management Company Limited" drawn on any Scheduled bank payable at New Delhi shall be submitted by the Applicant. (ii) EMD: - The envelope containing EMD and other relevant documents as required by this RFP will be opened. All the documents shall require to be as per format prescribed in the RFP. At any stage during the entire Bid evaluation process, if the EMD is found to be invalid, the respective Bidder's Bid shall be summarily rejected. If Physical Documents submitted by the Bidder has the Financial Bid details, the Bid shall be summarily rejected.

The Bidder shall furnish, as part of the Bid, Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) for an amount INR 10,00,000/- (Rupee Ten Lakh only) The Successful Bidder's EMD will be returned, without any interest, upon the Successful Bidder signing the Contract and furnishing the Performance Security in accordance with the provisions thereof. IHMCL may, at the Successful Bidder's option, adjust the amount of EMD in the amount of Performance Security to be provided by him in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.

The Earnest Money shall be in the form of a demand draft drawn in favour of "Indian Highways Management Company Ltd." on any Scheduled bank payable at New Delhi.

EMDs of unsuccessful Bidders will be returned back to them after signing of Contract with the Successful Bidder or after the expiry of the validity period of the Bids, whichever is earlier.

(iii) Other documents as specified the RFP

The Technical Bids will be evaluated by an Evaluation Committee. The Bidder shall have to fulfil all the Eligibility Criteria as specified in the RFP. The Bidder shall have to submit all the required documents and forms specified as per Annexure A – Annexure G (excluding Financial Proposal) and documents justifying bidders' eligibility on e-tender portal. These documents will be scrutinized in this phase of evaluation. Those Bidders who do not fulfil the terms and conditions of Eligibility Criteria as specified in this tender will not be eligible for further evaluation.

Evaluation of Technical Bids by the Evaluation Committee shall not be questioned by any of the Bidders. IHMCL may ask Bidder(s) for additional information, visit to Bidder's site and/ or arrange discussions with their professional, technical faculties to verify claims made in Technical Bid documentation from the Bidder on the already submitted Technical Proposal at any point of time before opening of the Financial Proposal.

Based upon the evaluation of these documents and the conditions specified in the RFP, IHMCL shall announce the names of the Bidders who have qualified for opening of Financial Bids. It is hereby clarified that Financial Bids of only such Bidders who are declared qualified as stated herein shall be opened.

iii. Phase-2: Financial Bid Evaluation:

- i. Technical Bids shall be opened first and based upon the evaluation of Technical Bids, IHMCL shall announce the names of the Bidders who have qualified for opening of Financial Bids. It is hereby clarified that Financial Bids of only such Bidders who are declared qualified as stated herein shall be opened. The Financial Bids of Bidders declared qualified as above, shall be opened in the Zone-wise sequence i.e. the Financial Bids of Zone-1 shall be opened first and thereafter that of Zone-2 and so on.
- ii. The maximum number of Zones for work award to any Bidder is limited to 1 (one), therefore, if any Bidder happens to be lowest in 1 Zone in the sequence of opening of Financial Bids mentioned above, its Financial Bids for remaining Zones shall not be opened/evaluated and shall be remained unopened/unevaluated after completion of Bid process.
- iii. Post completion of the evaluation in Phase 1, IHMCL will open the Financial bids of qualified bidders on the date and time prescribed. Prior to evaluation of the bids, IHMCL shall determine as to whether each bid is responsive to the requirements of this RFP document. A bid

will be declared non-responsive in case:

- a. If the Authorized Signatory holding Power of Attorney and Signatory are not the same
- b. If a bidder submits a conditional bid or makes changes in the terms and conditions given in this RFP document
- c. Failure to comply with all the requirements of RFP document by a bidder
- d. If the financial bid is not submitted in the formats prescribed in the RFP document
- e. If any requisite document/ certificate is not in the prescribed format the same shall not be considered while evaluating the Bids and the same may lead to Bid being declared as non-responsive.

 and
- f. The bid contain any pre-condition, assumption or qualification;
- iv. The Financial Bid Evaluation will be based on the "Final Cost" quoted by the bidder which would be the total payouts inclusive of all levies and taxes like Excise Duty, Custom Duty, packing, forwarding, freight and insurance, Octroi/Entry Tax, etc. or as applicable taxes, but exclusive of GST.
- v. If there is a discrepancy between words & figures, the amount in words shall prevail. If the bidder does not accept the correction of errors, its Bid shall be rejected and the EMD will be forfeited.
- vi. The Evaluation Committee shall determine if the financial bids are complete and without computational errors. The Bid with the lowest "Final Cost" (L1) will be selected as Successful bid in zone.
- vii. Total no. of assignments would be as per BOQ of respective Zones. However, depending upon the need and directions of IHMCL /NHAI, actual number of assignments may increase or decrease to the extent of 40%. In case of any increase in number of toll plaza, the final cost of survey shall be calculated based on the pro-rata average cost for that zone.
- viii. The financial quotes shall have to be provided on e-tender portal only.

- d. No proposal shall be accepted after the due date and time for submission of Proposals as specified in "Part II: Schedule of the Tender".
- e. After the Proposal submission until the contract is awarded, if any Bidder wishes to contact IHMCL on any matter related to its proposal, it should do so in writing at the Proposal submission address. Any effort by the firm to influence IHMCL during the Proposal evaluation, Proposal comparison or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of the Bidder's proposal.
- f. In case NO bid is received for any zone, the work as defined in RFP for that zone shall be equally distributed to other L1 bidders of other zone as per their Lowest determined rates.

3.7 IMBALANCED BID

If the Bid of the Successful Bidder is seriously imbalanced in relation to IHMCL's estimate of the cost of work to be performed under the Contract, IHMCL may require the Bidder to produce detailed price analysis for any or all items of the Bill of Quantities, to demonstrate the internal consistency of the proposed System. After evaluation of the price analyses, IHMCL may require that the amount of the Performance Security set forth in the RFP be increased and an additional Performance Security may be obtained at the expense of the Successful Bidder to a level sufficient to protect IHMCL against financial loss in the event of default of the Successful Bidder under the Contract. The amount of the additional increased Performance Security shall be equal to the seriously imbalanced amount, which shall be final, binding and conclusive on the Bidder.

3.8 PROCESS TO BE CONFIDENTIAL

Information relating to the examination, clarification, evaluation, and comparison of Bids and recommendations for the award of a Contract shall not be disclosed to Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with such process until the award to the Successful Bidder has been announced. Any attempt by a Bidder to influence IHMCL's processing of Bids or award decisions may result in the rejection of his Bid.

3.9 CLARIFICATION AND AMENDMENT OF RFP DOCUMENTS

a. Bidders may seek clarification on this RFP document no later than the date specified in the Schedule of the Tender. IHMCL reserves the right to not entertain any queries post that date. The Bidders are requested to submit the queries in electronic format (MS Excel file format only). Any request for clarification must be sent by standard electronic format (MS Excel file only) to the IHMCL's office addressed to:

General Manager,

Indian Highways Management Company Limited.

2nd Floor, MTNL Building, Sector-19, Dwarka,

New Delhi - 110075

Phone: 011-20427810

Email: tenders@ihmcl.com

b. The format for sending the queries is as mentioned below, in MS Excel format only:

Sl No	RFP reference and	Existing RFP	Clarification sought	Suggestion
	Pg. No.	Clause		/Remark
				(If any)

- c. IHMCL will endeavour to respond to the queries not later than the date mentioned in this RFP. IHMCL will post the reply to all such queries on websites mentioned in RFP.
- d. At any time before the submission of Proposals, IHMCL may, for any reason, whether at its own initiative or in response to a clarification requested by a prospective Bidder, modify the RFP documents by an amendment. All amendments/ corrigenda will be posted only on the Official Website: https://etenders.gov.in, www.ihmcl.co.in/tenders. In order to provide the Bidders reasonable time for taking an amendment into account, or for any other reason, IHMCL may at its sole discretion extend the proposal submission date.
- e. The bidder's confirmation on participating in the pre-bid meeting must be sent to tenders@ihmcl.com as per schedule of events.

3.10 ELIGIBILITY OF BIDDER

- a. The bidder qualifying the following criteria shall be considered eligible to bid for this RFP.
 - i. The applicant shall be, a Limited Liability Partnership registered under LLP Act,2008 or Company incorporated and registered in India under the Companies Act, 2013 or any other previous Company Law or a consortium or Joint Venture of two or more LLPs or Two or more Companies or combination thereof.

(Documentary proof (copy of certificate of incorporation) shall be submitted as part of the eligibility documents)

A Bidder shall only be allowed to participate in the Bidding Process only through one particular Consortium or JV and not through any other consortium constituted for this Project, either directly or indirectly or through any of their associates. In case it is found during the bidding process that a member of a Consortium/JV is also a member of any other Consortium/JV, all member of the respective Consortiums/JVs shall be disqualified and their EMD shall be forfeited.

- ii. The average annual turnover should be more than Rs. 8 cr. (Rupees Eight Crore only) in the last three consecutive financial years.(A certificate from the statutory auditor as proof for the above in the enclosed format)
- iii. The Bidder should have experience of undertaking minimum 400 nos. of 7 days traffic surveys on Highways using ATCC systems or setup ATCC systems in 3 different highway projects during the last five years ending December 2019.
- iv. The documentary proof in support of the experience(in the form of copy of work order/ completion certificate from its clients indicating the names of projects undertaken, scope of work of each project, name of client, start date, date of completion, value of the project etc.) shall be submitted as part of the

eligibility documents. The details of the said proofs of experience should be submitted in the format prescribed below.

The Bidder shall also submit an undertaking in the format prescribed in this document.

Name of Work	Client	Survey Duration	Certificate Placed at

- v. A subsidiary Company registered in India of such Foreign Company as fulfills the eligibility criteria and is otherwise eligible to bid under this RFP but for being a Foreign Company (holding company) may also participate, however, for considering the experience of the Holding Company, the subsidiary Company registered in India should provide a Deed of Guarantee from the Holding Company confirming thereby:
 - (a) perpetual and unconditional access to expertise, personnel and facilities of the Holding Company to the Indian Subsidiary Company;
 - (b) sharing of risks and profits of the Indian Subsidiary Company by the Holding Company; and
 - (c) that the Holding Company has 51% shareholding and sufficient representation in the management of Indian Company to control the activities of such Indian Company.
 - (d) In such case, only the experience and the details of the Parent Company will be considered.
- vi. The Applicant may be Joint Venture (JV)/ Consortium subject to fulfilling following conditions:
 - (a) maximum number of partners in the JV or Consortium shall be two;
 - (b) the parties in a JV or Consortium shall be jointly and severally liable;

- (c) the Lead Partner, shall be the most experienced firm amongst the parties in JV;
- (d) the Proposed holding of the Lead Partner in the JV or Consortium should be more than fifty percent (50%) of the total capital of JV or consortium;
- (e) the eligibility/ experience of each partner of JV or Consortium shall be considered as joint experience of JV/ Consortium; and
- (f) the eligibility/ experience of any partner of JV or Consortium shall be considered only if the partner is proposed to have at least twenty six percent (26%) holding in the total capital of JV or consortium
- b. The Applicant should not have been sanctioned or blacklisted or debarred by any government department/agency/PSU for material non-performance or contractual non-compliance in the last 3 years and should not be blacklisted on the date of submission of Bid. (Undertaking to be provided by the Authorized Signatory of the Bidder on its letterhead)

3.11 <u>AWARD OF CONTRACT</u>

- a. The Bid with the lowest "Final Cost" (L1) will be selected as Successful bid for each zone.
- b. After selection, a Letter of Award (the "LOA") will be issued by IHMCL to the Successful Bidder (L1 bidder) and the Successful Bidder shall, within 3 (Three) days of the receipt of the LOA, sign and return the duplicate copy of the LOA in acknowledgement thereof. In the event the duplicate copy of the LOA duly signed by the Successful Bidder is not received by the stipulated date, the IHMCL may, unless it consents to extension of time for submission thereof, appropriate the EMD of such Bidder as mutually agreed genuine pre-estimated loss and damage suffered by IHMCL on account of failure of the Successful Bidder to acknowledge the LOA, and the second lowest cost (i.e. L2) Bidder may be proposed to perform the work as per rates quoted by L1 bidder.
- c. The maximum number of Zones for work award to any Bidder is limited to 1 (one), therefore, if any Bidder happens to be lowest in a 01 (one) Zone in the sequence of

- opening of Financial Bids mentioned in relevant section, its Financial Bids for remaining Zones shall not be opened and shall be remained unopened after completion of Bid process.
- d. Performance Security: Performance Security of 10% of "Final Cost" shall be furnished from a Nationalized/ Scheduled Bank, before signing of the contract (within 3 days of issue of LOA), in form of a Bank Guarantee substantially in the form specified in the RFP. For the successful bidder the Performance Security will be retained by IHMCL until the completion of the Contract Agreement by the supplier and be released 180 (One hundred eighty) days after the completion of the Contract Agreement.
- e. Execution of contract: After acknowledgement of the LOA and furnishing of Performance Security (before 03 days of issue of LOA) as aforesaid by the Successful Bidder, it shall execute the Agreement within 06 (Six) days from the date of issue of LOA. The Successful Bidder shall not be entitled to seek any deviation in the Agreement.
- f. Commencement of Services: The Successful Bidder is expected to commence the Services within 04 days of Letter of Commencement issued by IHMCL. If the Successful Bidder fails to either sign the Agreement, commence the services, as specified herein, IHMCL may invite the second lowest cost (i.e. L2) Bidder for contract signing. In such an event, the EMD/ Performance Security, as the case may be, of the first ranked Bidder shall be liable to be forfeited.
- g. Conflict of Interest The bidder should not have a conflict of interest with the toll fee operators/contractors on the concerned toll plaza site and the bidder should furnish an undertaking to this effect. For the purpose of clarity, "conflict of interest" as used herein shall mean that the bidder should not be a toll operating agency at any of the toll plazas established on the National Highways.

3.12 PAYMENT TERMS

- a) Payments will be made in Indian Rupees only.
- b) All payments shall be made subject to adjustment of applicable penalties.
- c) The payment shall be made after successful completion of Traffic Survey at the

designated toll plazas on monthly basis and submission of deliverables as per relevant RFP clause viz. matching accuracy level. The schedule of payment shall be as under:

- (i) 100% payment normally on monthly basis within 60 days of submission of undisputed invoice.
- (ii) IHMCL may, by written notice of suspension to the Service Provider, suspend all payments to the Service Provider hereunder if the Service Provider fails to perform any of their obligations under this Contract, including the carrying out of the Services, provided that such notice of suspension (i) shall specify the nature of the failure, and (ii) shall request the Contractor to remedy such failure within a period not exceeding seven (07) days after receipt by the Service Provider of such notice of suspension.

3.13 PERFORMANCE SECURITY

Within 03 (Three) days of the receipt of the Letter of Award, the Successful Bidder shall submit an irrevocable and unconditional Bank Guarantee issued in the name of IHMCL for an amount equal to 10% of "Final Cost" quoted by successful bidder issued by a Bank described under this RFP which shall be verified at any branch located in the National Capital territory of Delhi and through SFMS mode as performance security for the due performance of its obligations under the Contract.

The aforesaid Bank Guarantee shall be as per the format given in format provided in this RFP and will be valid for a period till Contract period after the expiry of Contract period and shall also have a minimum claim period of 1 year.

3.14 BANK GUARANTEE (BG)

The Bank Guarantee in the name of IHMCL issued by the following banks would only be accepted: -

- i. Any Nationalized Bank
- ii. Any Scheduled Commercial Bank approved by RBI having a net worth of not less than Rs. 500 crore as per the latest Audited Balance Sheet of the Bank. In the case of a Foreign Bank (issued by a branch in India), the net worth in respect of the Indian operations shall only be taken into account

- iii. A Foreign Bank (issued by a branch outside India) with a counter guarantee from any Indian Nationalized Bank.
- iv. Export Import Bank of India

The acceptance of the Bank Guarantees shall also be subject to the following conditions: The capital adequacy of the Bank shall not be less than the norms prescribed by RBI
The bank guarantee issued by a Cooperative Bank shall not be accepted.

3.15 CORRUPT OR FRAUDULENT PRACTICES

IHMCL will reject a proposal for award and appropriate the EMD or the Performance Security, as the case may be, if it determines that the Bidder recommended for award has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for the contract in question.

IHMCL will declare the Bidder ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded a contract by IHMCL if it at any time determines that the Bidder has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for the contract, or during execution.

"Corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of value to influence the action of a public official or employee of IHMCL in the procurement process or in Contract execution.

"Fraudulent Practice" means a misrepresentation of facts in order to influence a procurement process or the execution of a contract to the detriment of IHMCL and includes collusive practice among Bidders (prior to or after bid submission) designed to establish bid process at artificial non-competitive levels and to deprive IHMCL of the benefits of free and open competition.

3.16 **MISCELLANEOUS**

a. The Selection Process shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of India and the Courts at New Delhi shall have exclusive jurisdiction over all disputes arising under, pursuant to and/or in connection with the Selection Process. IHMCL, in its sole discretion and without incurring any obligation or liability, reserves the right, at any time, to:

- suspend and/or cancel the Selection Process and/or amend and/or supplement the Selection Process or modify the dates or other terms and conditions relating thereto;
- (ii) consult with any Bidder in order to receive clarification or further information;
- (iii) retain any information and/or evidence submitted to IHMCL by, on behalf of and/or in relation to any Bidder; and/or
- (iv) Independently verify, disqualify, reject and/or accept any and all submissions or other information and/or evidence submitted by or on behalf of any Bidder.

3.17 <u>IMPORTANT TIMELINE/KEY TIMELINE</u>

The Successful bidder shall undertake the work as per timelines as mentioned below: -

LoA Issued by IHMCL	M (Date of issue of LoA)
LoA Acceptance and PBG submission by Successful bidder	M+3 days
Letter of Commencement issued by IHMCL	M+4 days
Deployment of Site Team and Commencement of Surveys by Successful bidder	M+8 days
Contract Signing between IHMCL and Successful bidder	M+8 days

PART – IV: SCOPE OF WORK

4.1 BACKGROUND

NHAI has mandated IHMCL to carry out comprehensive traffic surveys on national highways in India, which would include conducting traffic surveys using portable Automatic Vehicle Counter and Classifier (ATCC) systems, and creating central repository of traffic data for auditing, compilation and analysis of data generated from traffic surveys.

In that direction, IHMCL invites bids from eligible agencies to conduct traffic survey using portable Automatic Traffic Counter-cum-Classifiers (ATCC) on selected toll plaza for a continuous period of 2 months which may be extended on monthly basis upto maximum of additional 6 months. List of toll plaza is given in Annexure-H.

4.2 TRAFFIC SURVEY ASSIGNMENT

- (i) Installation of ATCC equipments and Camera within 200-300 meters from toll plaza location in a manner that gantry of toll plaza and installation of ATCC equipments shall be visible in captured video.
- (ii) In case it is not possible to install equipment within defined range, the survey locations should be selected so that there is no traffic leakage between survey location and toll plaza location. Service Provider shall record the distance between toll plaza location and Survey Location and submits proof of No Traffic Leakage.
- (iii) Service Provider shall make necessary arrangement to capture the details of each vehicle passing through toll plaza. Details of all vehicles approaching to toll plaza and passing by toll plaza should be captured through the ATCC System.
- (iv) Counting and classification of vehicles passing on toll plaza location of the National Highway with the help of portable Automatic Traffic Counter & Classifier (ATCC) Systems for a minimum continues period of 60 days round the clock. Also, the agency shall record video of the movement of vehicles with the date/timestamp during the same period.
- (v) The ATCC data & Video shall be captured /recorded on real-time basis.
- (vi) Service Provider shall commence the surveys within 04 days of issuance of the letter of commencement of works issued by IHMCL.
- (vii) Service Provider shall submit traffic survey data on daily basis after validation on webserver provided by IHMCL alongwith video submission on video server provided by IHMCL on or before 7th day after completion of survey. For example, the survey data should be submitted as per following timeline:
 - a. Survey Date 01-04-2020 from 00.00 Hrs to 23.59.59 Hrs

- b. Due time for uploading survey data on web-portal 02-04-2020 till 08:00 Hrs
- c. Due time for submission of video data 08-04-2020 till 18:00 Hrs Any delay in submission on survey data shall attract penalty as mentioned in RFP.
- (viii) The surveys schedule and surveys shall be carried out as per priority provided by IHMCL.
- (ix) Separate setup of ATCC and Videography shall be provided for upstream and downstream traffic on the project highway.
- (x) Total no. of assignments would be as per BOQ of respective Zones. However, depending upon the need and directions of IHMCL /NHAI, actual number of assignments may increase or decrease to the extent of 40%. In case of any increase in number of toll plaza, the final cost of survey shall be calculated based on the pro-rata average cost for that zone.
- (xi) Service provider needs to submit detailed analysis reports as and when required by IHMCL.

4.3 KEY PERSONNEL

- (i) The agency shall deploy three Traffic Expert and one Team Leader for the purpose of establishing coordination with IHMCL, who should be employed with the agency / firm whose CV shall be approved by IHMCL.
- (ii) The Team Leader shall be overall in-charge of traffic surveys and shall interact with IHMCL with reference to each assignment and shall also be responsible for certification of report of each assignment. He should be Graduate in Engineering with minimum 10 years of specific experience in undertaking and analysis of traffic surveys on highways.
- (iii) The Traffic Expert shall be available on-site during traffic survey assignments and shall be responsible and accountable to all data being captured by the ATCC systems.
- (iv) The Contractor shall be fully responsible to provide security to their persons deputed on traffic survey site including their insurance, wherever required under the law or considered prudent.
- (v) The Contractor shall submit proof of presence of Traffic Expert/Survey team in the format acceptable to IHMCL during assignment, if required by IHMCL.

4.4 ATCC SYSTEM

- (i) The Contractors may select the portable ATCC system based on any sensor technologies.
- (ii) The final uploaded data on the system should meet the following accuracy levels.
 - (i) Classification of vehicles: better than 95%

- (ii) Counting of vehicles: better than 98%
- (iii) For verification of the above-mentioned accuracy levels, IHMCL will compare the ATCC data with the video captured.
- (iv) ATCC system shall be provided for identifying and recording all types of vehicles on the highway for data collection.
- (v) The system shall be capable of classifying any other vehicle category as per user needs.
- (vi) Vehicle classification should be user selectable based on length of vehicle and number of axles and/or detuning of the loop inductivity.
- (vii) The system shall be robust and be capable of operating under all weather conditions.
- (viii) The system shall have the capability of accommodating multiple installations through installation of detectors/sensors taking inputs from portable sensors and should be modular in design.
- (ix) The system should be able to count and classify vehicle by each lane.
- (x) Should be capable of producing vehicle level reports so that vehicle count and classification, if required, can be cross checked with video easily.
- (xi) The system shall be capable of recording, for later analysis, on an individual vehicle basis, time/date, speed, direction. Number of axles, axle spacing, and site identification.
- (xii) Classification of vehicles shall be as per the relevant Standards of IRC. The ATCC system shall be able to classify following vehicles, but not limited to:
 - (i) Car/Jeep/Van
 - (ii) LCV -2 Axle Light Commercial Vehicle
 - (iii) 2 Axle Truck
 - (iv) 2 Axle Bus
 - (v) 3 Axle Truck
 - (vi) 3 Axle Bus
 - (vii) Multi Axle Vehicles (MAV) (4 to 6 axle)
 - (viii) Oversized Vehicle (OSV) (more than 6 axle)
- (xiii) Video Camera: Color video camera with the IR flash capable of capturing video during night/dark. Captured video should enable employer to identify and classify vehicles visually. Camera must be installed in such a way so that ATCC equipment must be visible in the recording also captured video must have Location name, date of survey, Latitude Longitude.
 - (a) Video camera shall be mounted in such a way that occlusions do not generally obstruct view of the traffic.
 - (b) Separate cameras to capture upstream and downstream traffic shall be used. There will be total two cameras in each direction of traffic.
 - (c) The mounting height shall be such that the axle configuration of the vehicle shall be clearly visible.
 - (d) For videography, colour video camera with IR flash capable of capturing video during night/dark shall be used. The traffic in the captured video during night time should be clearly visible for counting, classification and cross checking.

- (e) It shall be ensured that no vehicle is stopped/parked in front of the camera obstructing view of the camera.
- (f) Camera angel shall be such that the headlight glare from vehicles does not impact quality of the video.
- (g) The camera to be used shall have a resolution of at-least 640x480 pixels and shall have frame rate of 25FPS. In case IR enabled camera is used, the IR range shall be at-least 15m so that direction wise traffic from roadside can be captured without loss of quality. Cameras to be used shall have weather proof housing/casing so that video capture is uninterrupted by weather conditions.

4.5 THE SYSTEM:

- a) should be able to work as true Multi-lane free flow operation in which the Lane crossing classification should be possible together with simultaneous passages. The system should be capable of recognizing the flow of traffic in either direction.
- b) shall separately detect and classify vehicles passing at the same time side by side
- c) Trailers with the shafts shall be detected and classified as one vehicle and not classified and counted as separate vehicles.
- d) should be able to classify and count standard vehicles travelling up to 100 kmph.

4.6 DELIVERABLES:

- a. The report formats shall be finalized after discussions with all the agencies and Control Centre (CC) service provider and shall be standardized by IHMCL, which may be modified from time to time based on the requirement.
- b. The Traffic Survey data shall be submitted on daily basis and will constitute the basis for the payments. The report should meet the objectives set-out in the Scope of Work. T = Traffic Completion Date
- c. In addition, traffic survey data and video with analysis shall also be submitted to IHMCL in electronic storage media viz. portable HDD/ DVD media for each assignment. HDD can be recycled data should be copied on IHMCL server.
- d. In addition of submission of traffic survey data to IHMCL, each agency need to store entire traffic survey data and video of each location over contract period at their end. IHMCL may ask agency to submit the data as per requirement.
- e. Classification of vehicles shall be as per the relevant Standards of IRC. The ATCC system shall be able to classify following vehicles, but not limited to:
 - (i) Car/Jeep/Van
 - (ii) LCV -2 Axle Light Commercial Vehicle
 - (iii) 2 Axle Truck
 - (iv) 2 Axle Bus
 - (v) 3 Axle Truck
 - (vi) 3 Axle Bus
 - (vii) Multi Axle Vehicles (MAV) (4 to 6 axle)
 - (viii) Oversized Vehicle (OSV) (more than 6 axle)

4.7 TRAFFIC SURVEY ZONES / LOCATIONS

- a. The traffic survey locations are grouped in 4 Zones as per Annexure H. The bidders are expected to upload separate financial bid for each zone.
- b. The approximate number of zone-wise locations where such traffic survey is intended to be performed is indicated in Annexure H.
- c. With an objective to capture regional/seasonal variations of traffic, agencies shall plan the traffic survey suitably considering climatic conditions like rain, fog etc in that particular zone.
- d. The no. of survey locations in Annexure-H is indicative only. IHMCL will not be responsible for any compensation, in case of any increase or decrease in the number of locations. IHMCL reserves the right to allocate Traffic Survey assignment of any location of any zone to any agency. IHMCL also reserves the right to conduct repeat survey at any location as per requirements from time to time and to allocate the assignment for such repeat survey to the same agency or another agency, as it may deem fit.
- e. The Contractors shall have sufficient teams/setup to complete traffic surveys in respective Zones.
- f. The Contractors shall have to conduct traffic surveys as per priority provided by IHMCL.
- g. IHMCL reserves the right to modify this TOR in public interest and proper conduct of services.

4.8 MISCELLANEOUS

- a) Survey location shall be judiciously selected such that there is no traffic generation between count location and toll plaza.
- b) Agencies shall be careful with counts and classification, if there is heavy u-turning traffic at toll plaza.

4.9 OBLIGATIONS OF AGENCY

The Agency shall be responsible to:

- i) Arrange required electrical power including uninterrupted power supply system at the site;
- ii) Safety and security of its equipment and staff;
- iii) Deploy adequate number of resources with qualifications and skills commensurate to the job requirement;
- iv) Maintain adequate insurance covers to safeguards its interest regarding any loss/damage/theft to its equipment and or personal during conduct of the assignment;
- v) Indemnify IHMCL against any damage/loss of property or personal of the agency during conduct of assignment.
- vi) Submit Daily, Weekly and Monthly survey report as per format provided by IHMCL. The reports need to be submitted by next day for each defined period for ex. Daily report of previous day needs to be submitted on next day, Weekly report of ending week needs to be submitted on next day of starting week.
- vii) Sign Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA) as per Annexure-J.

4.10 DAMAGES

- i. Delay in commencement of assignments After 04 days of issuance of Letter of Commencement: Damages of Rs. 10,000/-per day upto to a maximum of Rs. 1,00,000/- shall be imposed for each survey location. After 07 non-commencement of surveys IHMCL may consider to terminate the agreement and forfeit the PBG.
- ii. Delay in submission of survey data on web-portal and reports: Damages of Rs. 5000/- per day upto to a maximum of Rs. 50,000/- per survey location shall be imposed.
- iii. Delay in submission of video data on IHMCL Server: Damages of Rs. 5000/-per day upto to a maximum of Rs. 50,000/- per survey location shall be imposed.
- iv. IHMCL will conduct random checking of the traffic survey report(s). In case the accuracy levels fall below the specified limit indicated in relevant section, no payment will be made for the concerned week.
- v. In case, 3 of such incidences (below accuracy) were found IHMCL shall take necessary steps as to terminate the Agreement and forfeit the PBG, without prior notice.
- vi. In case IHMCL is of the view that the delay is due to reasons beyond the control of the Service Provider, suitable extension of time may be granted to the Service Provider with or without imposing any Damages on such Service Provider in the absolute discretion of IHMCL.
- vii. Damages shall be payable by the Service Provider within 5 days of imposition thereof by IHMCL, failing which the same shall be deducted from the payments to be made to the Service Provider or from the Performance Security as deemed appropriate by IHMCL.
- viii. The Damages payable, as set forth in this Contract, are mutually agreed genuine pre-estimated loss and damage likely to be suffered and incurred by the Party entitled to receive the same and are not by way of penalty (the "Damages").

PART - V: CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

5.1 CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

These Conditions shall supplement or amend the other parts of the Bidding Documents and whenever there is a conflict; provision herein shall prevail over those in the other parts of the Bidding Documents.

5.2 GOVERNING LANGUAGE

All correspondence and other documents to be exchanged by the parties shall be written in the English language. The version written in English language shall govern its interpretation.

5.3 APPLICABLE LAW

Appropriate laws as in force in Republic of India shall apply.

5.4 Project Scope

The scope of project shall include activities as specified in Part IV of the document.

5.5 INTERPRETATION

In interpreting these Conditions of Contract, singular also means plural, male also means female or neuter, and the other way around. Headings have no significance. Words have their normal meaning under the language of the Contract unless specifically defined.

The Bidders are expected to examine all terms and instructions included in the RFP Document. During preparation of the proposal, the bidders shall make their own assessment of staff to undertake the assignment.

5.6 RIGHT TO AMEND PROJECT SCOPE

IHMCL retains the right to amend the Project Scope without assigning any reason at any time during the Contract Period. IHMCL makes no commitments, express or implied, that the full scope of work as described in this RFP will be commissioned.

5.7 PAYMENT TERMS

As mentioned in relevant section of RFP

5.8 SLA/ PENALTY

As mentioned in relevant section of RFP

5.9 PRICES

- a) GST as applicable, which will be levied on the goods and services invoiced by the Service Provider to IHMCL, will be reimbursed on actual basis.
- b) IHMCL reserves the right to ask the Service Provider to submit proof of payment against any of the taxes, duties, levies indicated.
- c) All payments shall be made subject to adjustment of applicable damages.
- d) No amount or cost shall be payable for holding discussion, as considered necessary by IHMCL, for any purpose with IHMCL's Officials at IHMCL's Head Office or elsewhere, prior, during or after the conduct of an assignment.
- e) Prices quoted by the bidder shall be excluding GST and fixed for the entire Contract

period.

5.10 CONTRACT PERIOD

The time period of the project is 02 months and shall start from the date of signing of Contract Agreement. Upon completion of 02 months, IHMCL may consider extending the engagement on monthly basis upto a maximum of 6 months from the date of signing of Contract Agreement with same "Cost" as quoted by the Bidder for the RFP.

5.11 INSURANCE

The Service Provider shall effect and maintain at its own cost, during the Contract period, such insurances for such maximum sums as may be required under the Applicable Laws, and such insurances as may be necessary or prudent in accordance with Good Industry Practice to cover third party claims, theft, accidental damage, vandalism, fire, flood, and Force Majeure events.

5.12 FORCE MAJEURE

- a) Neither party shall be responsible to the other for any delay or failure in performance of its obligations due to any occurrence of a Force Majeure event which is beyond the control of any of the Parties, including, but without limited to, fire, flood, explosion, acts of God or any governmental body, public disorder, riots, embargoes, or strikes, acts of military authority, epidemics, strikes, lockouts or other labour disputes, insurrections, civil commotion, war, enemy actions.
- b) If a Force Majeure arises, the Service Provider shall promptly notify IHMCL in writing of such condition and the cause thereof. Unless otherwise directed by IHMCL, the Service Provider shall continue to perform his obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall seek all reasonable alternative means for performance not prevented by the Force Majeure event. The Parties shall be excused from performance of their respective obligations in whole or part as long as such Force Majeure event continues to prevent or delay such performance by the Parties. However, in case such Force Majeure event lasts for a continuous period of 60 days, either Party may terminate the Contract.

5.13 INDEMNIFICATION

a) The Service Provider shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless, IHMCL,NHAI

and MoRTH and their officers, servants, agents (hereinafter referred to as the "IHMCL Indemnified Persons") against any direct loss, damage, claims, cost and expense of whatever kind and nature (including without limitation, legal fees, claims and expenses incurred in connection with any suit, action or proceeding or any claim asserted, as such fees and expenses are incurred), joint or several, that arise out of or are based upon any order passed by any statutory authority including Courts, tribunals or other judicial/quasi judicial authorities, on account of breach of the Service Provider's obligations under this Contract or any other related agreement or otherwise, any fraud or negligence attributable to the Service Provider or its Agents under contract or tort or on any other ground whatsoever, all eventualities of theft, dacoity, robbery, etc., except to the extent that any such suits, proceedings, actions, demands and claims has arisen due to any breach or default of this Contract on the part of IHMCL Indemnified Persons.

- b) The Service Provider shall indemnify IHMCL Indemnified Persons from all legal obligations in respect of professionals deployed by the Service Provider. IHMCL Indemnified Persons also stand absolved of any liability on account of death or injury sustained by the Service Provider's staff during the performance of their work and also for any damages or compensation due to any dispute between the Service Provider and its staff.
- c) In addition to the aforesaid, the Service Provider shall fully indemnify, hold harmless and defend IHMCL Indemnified Persons from and against any and all direct loss, damage, cost and expense of whatever kind and nature (including, without limitation, legal fees and other expenses incurred in connection with any suit, action or proceeding or any claim asserted, as such fees and expenses are incurred), joint or several, that arise out of, or are based upon any demands, claims, suits or proceedings arising out of claims of infringement of any domestic or foreign patent rights, copyrights or other intellectual property, proprietary or confidentiality rights with respect to any materials, information, design or process used by the Service Provider or by the Agents in performing the Service Provider's obligations or in any way incorporated in or related to this Contract. If in any such suit, action, claim or proceedings, a temporary restraint order or preliminary injunction is granted, the

Service Provider shall make every reasonable effort, by giving a bond (of the type and value as required) or otherwise, to secure the revocation or suspension of the injunction or restraint order and continue to perform its obligations hereunder. If the Service Provider is unable to secure such revocation within a reasonable time, it shall, at its own expense, and without impairing the Specifications and Standards, shall rectify such defaults and shall also be liable for damages to IHMCL for the corresponding loss during the interim period on this account.

- d) The provisions of this Clause shall survive Termination.
- e) The remedies provided under the Clause are not exclusive and shall not limit any rights or remedies that may otherwise be available to IHMCL Indemnified Persons at law or in equity.

5.14 TERMINATION

- a) ON EXPIRY OF THE CONTRACT: Subject to the condition mentioned under the RFP, the Agreement shall be deemed to have been automatically terminated on the expiry of the Contract Period unless IHMCL has exercised its option to further renew the Contract Period in accordance with the provisions, if any, of the Contract.
- b) ON ACCOUNT OF FORCE MAJEURE: Either party shall have the right to terminate the Contract on account of Force Majeure, as set forth in the RFP.
- c) ON BREACH OF CONTRACT: IHMCL may terminate the Contract if the Service Provider causes a fundamental breach of the Contract. Fundamental breach of Contract include, but shall not be limited to, the following:
 - i. The Service Provider fails to carry out any obligation under the Contract.
 - ii. The Service Provider without reasonable excuse fails to commence the work in accordance with relevant clauses.
 - iii. Has failed to furnish the required securities or extension thereof in terms of the Contract.
 - iv. the Service Provider stops work and the stoppage has not been authorized by IHMCL;
 - v. the Service Provider at any time during the term of the Contract becomes insolvent or makes a voluntary assignment of its assets for the benefit of creditors or is adjudged bankrupt

- vi. If the Service Provider, in the judgment of the Employer, has engaged in the corrupt or fraudulent practice in competing for or in executing the Contract.
- d) The Service Provider sub-contracts any assignment under this Agreement without approval of IHMCL.
- e) Any other fundamental breaches as specified in the RFP.
- f) Any other breach of clause for which termination is specified in the RFP.
- g) Notwithstanding the above, IHMCL may terminate the Contract in its sole discretion by giving 10 days prior notice without assigning any reason.
- h) Upon Termination (except on account of expiry of Term of this Agreement, Force Majeure), IHMCL shall be entitled at the sole discretion to:
 - i. appropriate the entire Performance Security or part thereof as Damages; and
 - ii. Debar/Blacklist the Service Provider from participating in any other project/assignment/work of IHMCL for a period as determined by IHMCL in its sole discretion.

5.15 Appropriation of Performance Security

- a) Upon failure of the Service Provider to commence the services, for any reason whatsoever, within the period set forth in this Contract or the extended period thereunder, IHMCL shall, without prejudice to its other rights and remedies hereunder or in law, be entitled to levy Damages as per relevant Clause hereinabove.
- b) IHMCL shall, without prejudice to its other rights and remedies hereunder or in law, be entitled to encash and appropriate the relevant amounts from the Performance Security as Damages or any other amounts payable to IHMCL under this Contract as and when such Damages or other amounts become due and payable. Upon such encashment and appropriation from the Performance Security, the Service Provider shall, within 10 days thereof, replenish, in case of partial appropriation, to its original level of the amount guaranteed under the Performance Security, and in case of appropriation of the entire Performance Security, provide a fresh Performance Security, as the case may be failing which IHMCL shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement in accordance with relevant clause hereof.

5.16 MISCELLANEOUS

a) Standard of Performance

The Service Provider shall undertake to perform the services with the highest standards of professional and ethical competence and integrity which are, amongst others, ESSENCE of this assignment. Keeping in view the sensitivity involved in such assignments, the personnel deployed should maintain confidentiality/integrity at all times and should work in a professional manner to protect the interest of IHMCL. The firm shall promptly replace any personnel deployed under this contract that IHMCL considered unsatisfactory.

b) Representations and Warranties of the Parties

The Parties represents and warrants to the each other that:

- It is duly organized and validly existing under the applicable laws, and has full
 power and authority to execute and perform its obligations under this Contract
 and to carry out the transactions contemplated hereby;
- ii. It has taken all necessary corporate and other actions under applicable laws to authorize the execution and delivery of this Contract and to validly exercise its rights and perform its obligations under this Contract;
- iii. This Contract constitutes its legal, valid and binding obligation, enforceable against it in accordance with the terms hereof, and its obligations under this Contract will be legally valid, binding and enforceable obligations against it in accordance with the terms hereof;
- iv. The information furnished in the Bid and as updated on or before the date of this Contract is true and accurate in all respects as on the date of this Contract;
- v. The execution, delivery and performance of this Contract will not conflict with, result in the breach of, constitute a default under, or accelerate performance required by any of the terms of its Memorandum and Articles of Association [or those of any member of the Consortium] or any Applicable Laws or any covenant, contract, agreement, arrangement, understanding, decree or order to which it is a party or by which it or any of its properties or assets is bound or affected;

vi. There are no actions, suits, proceedings, or investigations pending or, to its knowledge, threatened against it at law or in equity before any court or before any other judicial, quasi-judicial or other authority, the outcome of which may result in the breach of this Contract or which individually or in the aggregate may result in any material impairment of its ability to perform any of its obligations under this Contract;

c) Waiver of immunity

Each Party unconditionally and irrevocably:

- i. Agrees that the execution, delivery and performance by it of this Contract constitute commercial acts done and performed for commercial purpose;
- ii. Agrees that, should any proceedings be brought against it or its assets, property or revenues in any jurisdiction in relation to this Contract or any transaction contemplated by this Contract, no immunity (whether by reason of sovereignty or otherwise) from such proceedings shall be claimed by or on behalf of the Party with respect to its assets;)
- iii. Waives any right of immunity which it or its assets, property or revenues now has, may acquire in the future or which may be attributed to it in any jurisdiction; and
- iv. Consents generally in respect of the enforcement of any judgment or award against it in any such proceedings to the giving of any relief or the issue of any process in any jurisdiction in connection with such proceedings (including the making, enforcement or execution against it or in respect of any assets, property or revenues whatsoever irrespective of their use or intended use of any order or judgment that may be made or given in connection therewith).

d) Waiver

- i. Waiver, including partial or conditional waiver, by either Party of any default by the other Party in the observance and performance of any provision of or obligations under this Contract:
 - Shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any other or subsequent default hereof or of other provisions of or obligations under this Contract;

- Shall not be effective unless it is in writing and executed by a duly authorised representative of the Party; and
- Shall not affect the validity or enforceability of this Contract in any manner.
- ii. Neither the failure by either Party to insist on any occasion upon the performance of the terms, conditions and provisions of this Contract or any obligation there under nor time or other indulgence granted by a Party to the other Party shall be treated or deemed as waiver of such breach or acceptance of any variation or the relinquishment of any such right hereunder.

e) Liability for review of Documents

Except to the extent expressly provided in this Contract:

- i. No review, comment or approval by IHMCL, any document submitted by the Service Provider nor any observation or inspection of the Services performed by the Contractor nor the failure to review, approve, comment, observe or inspect hereunder shall relieve or absolve the Contractor from its obligations, duties and liabilities under this Contract, the Applicable Laws and applicable permits; and
- ii. IHMCL shall not be liable to the Service Provider by reason of any review, comment, approval, observation or inspection referred to in Sub-clause (a) above.

f) Exclusion of implied warranties etc.

This Contract expressly excludes any warranty, condition or other undertaking implied at law or by custom or otherwise arising out of any other agreement between the Parties or any representation by either Party not contained in a binding legal agreement executed by both Parties.

g) Survival

- i. Termination shall:
 - Not relieve the Contractor or IHMCL, as the case may be, of any obligations hereunder which expressly or by implication survive Termination hereof; and

- Except as otherwise provided in any provision of this Contract expressly limiting the liability of either Party, not relieve either Party of any obligations or liabilities for loss or damage to the other Party arising out of or caused by acts or omissions of such Party prior to the effectiveness of such Termination or arising out of such Termination.
- ii. All obligations surviving Termination shall only survive for a period of 3 (three) years following the date of such Termination

h) Entire Agreement

This Contract, the RFP and the Sections hereto together constitute a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement between the Parties on the subject hereof and no amendment or modification hereto shall be valid and effective unless such modification or amendment is agreed to in writing by the Parties and duly executed by persons especially empowered in this behalf by the respective Parties. All prior written or oral understandings, offers or other communications of every kind pertaining to this Contract are abrogated and withdrawn. For the avoidance of doubt, the Parties hereto agree that any obligations of the Contractor arising from the Request for Proposals shall be deemed to form part of this Contract and treated as such.

i) Severability

If for any reason whatever any provision of this Contract is or becomes invalid, illegal or unenforceable or is declared by any court of competent jurisdiction or any other instrumentality to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality or enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be affected in any manner, and the Parties will negotiate in good faith with a view to agreeing to one or more provisions which may be substituted for such invalid, unenforceable or illegal provisions, as nearly as is practicable to such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision. Failure to agree upon any such provisions shall not be subject to the Dispute Resolution Procedure set forth under this Contract or otherwise.

j) No partnership

This Contract shall not be interpreted or construed to create an association, joint venture or partnership between the Parties, or to impose any partnership obligation or liability upon either Party and neither Party shall have any right, power or authority to enter into any agreement or undertaking for, or act on behalf of, or to act as or be an agent or representative of, or to otherwise bind, the other Party.

k) Third parties

This Contract is intended solely for the benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns and nothing in this Contract shall be construed to create any duty to, standard of care with reference to, or any liability to, any person not a Party to this Contract.

1) Successors and assigns

This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

m) Notices

Any notice or other communication to be given by any Party to the other Party under or in connection with the matters contemplated by this Contract shall be in writing and shall:

- i. in the case of the Contractor, be given by facsimile or e-mail and by letter delivered by hand to the address given and marked for attention of the person set out below or to such other person as the Contractor may from time to time designate by notice to IHMCL; provided that notices or other communications to be given to an address outside Delhi may, if they are subsequently confirmed by sending a copy thereof by registered acknowledgement due, air mail or by courier, be sent by facsimile or e-mail to the number as the Contractor may from time to time designate by notice to IHMCL;
- ii. in the case of IHMCL, be given by facsimile or e-mail and by letter delivered by hand and be addressed to the [•] of IHMCL with a copy delivered to the Authority Representative or such other person as IHMCL may from time to time designate by notice to the Contractor; provided that if the Contractor does not have an

office in Delhi it may send such notice by facsimile or e-mail and by registered acknowledgement due, air mail or by courier; and

iii. any notice or communication by a Party to the other Party given in accordance herewith shall be deemed to have been delivered when in the normal course of post it ought to have been delivered and in all other cases, it shall be deemed to have been delivered on the actual date and time of delivery; provided that in the case of facsimile or e-mail, it shall be deemed to have been delivered on the working day following the date of its delivery

n) Sub-Contracting

The Service Provider shall not sub-contract any assignment to a third party. The Service Provider shall remain solely responsible for all works under this Agreement.

o) Confidentiality of the Assignment/Findings

The agency shall not, during the term of assignment and within two years after its expiration, disclose any propriety or confidential information relating to the services, this assignment or IHMCL's business or operations without prior written consent of IHMCL.

p) Modification

Modification of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including any modification of the scope of the Services, may only be made by written agreement between the Parties as the case may be, has been obtained.

q) Language

All notices required to be given by one Party to the other Party and all other communications, Documentation and proceedings which are in any way relevant to this Contract shall be in writing and in English language.

For & behalf of IHMCL

By Signature

Authorised Representative		Name
		Address
For & behalf of	Witness	
(Contractor)		
	1.	Signature
		Name
		Address
Ву		
Authorised Representative	2.	Signature
		Name
		Address

PART - VI: ANNEXURE

Annexure A: Covering Letter

(To be prepared on letterhead of the Applicant)

To

The General Manager

Indian Highways Management Co. Ltd. (IHMCL) 2nd Floor, MTNL Building, Sector 19, Dwarka New Delhi 110 075

Subject: Conducting Traffic Survey on National Highways Toll Plaza using portable Automatic Traffic Counter & Classifier (ATCC) systems alongwith Videography

Dear Sir,

- 1. I/We, the undersigned, have carefully examined the contents of the document including amendments/ addendums (if any) thereof and undertake to fully comply and abide by the terms and conditions specified therein and hereby submit our application. Our application is unconditional and unqualified.
- 2. I/We undertake that, in competing for (and, if the award is made to us), for executing the above contract, we will strictly observe the laws against fraud and corruption in force in India.
- 3. I/We understand that:

- a. this application, if found incomplete in any respect and/ or if found with conditional compliance or not accompanied with the requisite application fee and/ or prescribed supporting document shall be summarily rejected.
- b. if at any time, any averments made or information furnished as part of this application is found incorrect, then the application will be rejected
- c. IHMCL is not bound to accept any/all application(s) it will receive.
- 4. I/We declare that:
- (a) **I/We have not been** *declared ineligible* by IHMCL, NHAI or Ministry of Road Transport & Highways, Government of India or any other agency for indulging in corrupt or fraudulent practices. I/We also confirm that I/We have not been *declared as non-performing or debarred* by NHAI or Ministry of Road Transport & Highways, Government of India.
- (b) I/We haven't been blacklisted by a Central/ State Government institution/ Public Sector Undertaking/ Autonomous body and there has been no litigation with any Government Department/ PSU/ Autonomous body on account of similar services.
- 5. I/We declare that our bid is valid for 180 days.

Name
Designation/ Title of the Authorized Signatory

Annexure B: Brief Information about the Applicant(s)

(To be prepared on letterhead of the Applica	(To.	be pre	pared	on .	letterl	read	of t	the A	lppi	lica	n	t
--	---	-----	--------	-------	------	---------	------	------	-------	------	------	---	---

Subject: Conducting Traffic Survey on National Highways Toll Plaza using portable Automatic Traffic Counter & Classifier (ATCC) systems alongwith Videography

- 1. (a) Name of Applicant:
 - (b) Year of establishment:
 - (c) Registered Address:
 - (d) Constitution of the Applicant entity e.g. Government enterprise, private limited company, limited company, etc.
 - (e) Bank Account details (for returning EMD): Account Holder Name, Account number, Bank name, IFSC code
- 2. Address for correspondence with Telephone/ Fax numbers/ e-mail address:
 - (a) Complete postal address:
 - (b) Fixed telephone number
 - (c) Mobile number
 - (d) E-mail address
- 3. Name of the Statutory Auditor certifying the documents along with his/ her Membership number, if applicable:
- 4. Financial details/projects meeting the qualifying criteria

ame	
esignation / Title of the Authorized Signatory	

Annexure C: Brief Information about the project (Not to exceed 10 pages)

Subject: Conducting Traffic Survey on National Highways Toll Plaza using portable Automatic Traffic Counter & Classifier (ATCC) systems alongwith Videography

The technical proposal should contain a technical presentation in PDF format, which can justify the Bidder's proposal on following aspects:

- i. technical, operational and environmental compatibility of the proposed Solution as per RFP
- ii. proposed solution,
- iii. Confirmation on meeting Technical requirement and specification as prescribed in $\operatorname{\mathsf{RFP}}$.

Annexure D: Bidder's Annual Turnover

RFP Ref	_ (Date)							
From,			To,					
(Name & Address of the Bidder)			Gene	ral Mar	nager,			
			India	n High	ways Ma	ınagemei	nt Co. Ltd.	
			2 nd	Floor,	MTNL	Building	g, Sector	-19,
Dwarka								
			New 1	Delhi 1	10 075			
Subject:								
Dear Sir/Madai	m,							
We hereby cer	tify that the a	verage annual	turnov	er of M	[/s		(name	of the
bidder) for the	last three fina	ncial years (er	nding 31	L st Marc	ch of the	previou	s financial	year)
is as given belo	w:							
	Annual Turn	over for the l	last 3 Fi	nancia	l Years (FYs)		
	in Indian Rup	pees (INR)						
	FY	FY	FY		Averag	e		
	(2016-	(2017-	(2018-	-				
	2017)	2018)	2019)					
Varra Cin sanal	.							
Yours Sincere	ıy,							
(Signature of S	Statutory Aud	litor)						
Name of the St	atutory Audi	tor:						

Annexure E: Power of Attorney

Know all men by these presents, we, M/s (name of Firm/ Company and address of the
registered office) do hereby constitute, nominate, appoint and authorize Mr/ Ms
son/daughter/wife of and presently residing at, who is presently
employed with us and holding the position of as our true and lawful attorney (hereinafter referred to
as the "Authorized Signatory or Attorney") to do in our name and on our behalf, all such acts, deeds and things
$as are \ necessary \ or \ required \ in \ connection \ with \ or \ incidental \ to \ submission \ of \ our \ quotation \ for \ empanelment \ as \ an expectation \ or \ empanelment \ as \ an expectation \ or \ empanelment \ as \ an expectation \ of \ our \ quotation \ for \ empanelment \ as \ an expectation \ of \ our \ quotation \ for \ empanelment \ as \ an expectation \ of \ our \ quotation \ for \ empanelment \ as \ an expectation \ of \ our \ quotation \ for \ empanelment \ as \ an expectation \ of \ our \ quotation \ for \ empanelment \ as \ an expectation \ of \ our \ quotation \ for \ empanelment \ as \ an expectation \ of \ our \ quotation \ for \ empanelment \ as \ an expectation \ of \ our \ quotation $
the agency for, proposed by Indian Highways Management Co. Ltd., including but not limited to
signing and submission of all applications, proposals and other documents and writings, and providing
$information/\ responses\ to\ IHMCL,\ representing\ us\ in\ all\ matters\ before\ IHMCL,\ signing\ and\ execution\ of\ all\ representing\ us\ in\ all\ matters\ before\ IHMCL,\ signing\ and\ execution\ of\ all\ representing\ us\ in\ all\ matters\ before\ IHMCL,\ signing\ and\ execution\ of\ all\ representing\ us\ in\ all\ matters\ before\ IHMCL,\ signing\ and\ execution\ of\ all\ representing\ us\ in\ all\ matters\ before\ IHMCL,\ signing\ and\ execution\ of\ all\ representing\ us\ in\ all\ matters\ before\ IHMCL,\ signing\ and\ execution\ of\ all\ representing\ us\ in\ all\ us\ in\ all\ representing\ us\ in\ all\ us\ in\ a$
$contracts\ and\ undertakings\ consequent\ to\ acceptance\ of\ our\ proposal\ and\ generally\ dealing\ with\ IHMCL\ in\ all\ proposal\ and\ proposal\ and\ generally\ dealing\ with\ IHMCL\ in\ all\ proposal\ proposal$
matters in connection with or relating to or arising out of our proposal for the said assignment and/or upon
award thereof to us.
AND, we do hereby agree to ratify and confirm all acts, deeds and things lawfully done or caused to be done by
our said Authorized Signatory or Attorney pursuant to and in exercise of the powers conferred by this Power of
Attorney and that all acts, deeds and things done by our said Authorized Representative in exercise of the
powers hereby conferred shall and shall always be deemed to have been done by us.
powers hereby conterred shall and shall always be deemed to have been done by us.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF WE,THE ABOVE NAMED PRINCIPAL HAVE EXECUTED THIS
POWER OF ATTORNEY ON THIS DAY OF, 2020
For
(Signature, name, designation and address)
Witnesses:
1.
2.
Notarized
Accepted
(Signature, name, designation and address of the Attorney)

Notes:

The mode of execution of the Power of Attorney should be in accordance with the procedure, if any, laid down by the applicable law and the charter documents of the executants(s) and when it is so required the same should be under common seal affixed in accordance with the required procedure. The Power of Attorney should be executed on a non-judicial stamp paper of appropriate denomination and should be registered or duly notarized by a notary public.

Wherever required, the Applicant should submit for verification the extract of the charter documents and other documents such as a resolution/power of attorney in favor of the person executing this Power of Attorney for the delegation of power hereunder on behalf of the Applicant.

For a Power of Attorney executed and issued overseas, the document will also have to be legalized by the Indian Embassy and notarized in the jurisdiction where the Power of Attorney is being issued. However, Applicants from countries that have signed The Hague Legislation Convention 1961 need not get their Power of Attorney legalized by the Indian Embassy if it carries a conforming Apostles certificate.

Annexure G: Format for Performance Security (Bank Guarantee)

Т),
	General Manager,
	Indian Highways Management Company Ltd 2 nd Floor, MTNL Building, Sector-19, Dwarka, New Delhi – 110075, India
Se w	[Name and address of Agency] (hereinafter called "the ervice Provider") has decided to apply to IHMCL for providing services, in pursuance of IHMCL letter of ork award No dated dd/mm/yyyy for "REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL(RFP) FOR SELECTION OF ENDOR FOR MANAGING IHMCL WALLET" **Rereinafter called the "Contract").
1.	AND WHEREAS it has been stipulated by IHMCL in the said letter that the Service Provider shall furnish a Bank Guarantee for the sum specified therein as security for compliance with his obligations in accordance with the terms & conditions of the Contract Agreement.
2.	AND WHEREAS we have agreed to give the Service Provider such a Bank Guarantee:
 4. 	NOW THEREFORE we hereby affirm that we are the Guarantor and responsible to you, on behalf of the Service Provider up to a total of `/- (Rupees) only, such sum being payable in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, and we undertake to pay you, upon your first written demand and without cavil or argument, any sum or sums within the limits of `/- as aforesaid without your needing to prove or to show grounds or reasons for your demand for the sum specified therein. We hereby waive the necessity of your demanding the said debt from the Service Provider before presenting us with the demand.
5.	We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the service provider or of the works to be performed there under or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between you and the Service Provider shall in any way release us from any liability under this guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition or modification.

6.	We undertake to pay to the IHMCL any money so demanded notwithstanding any dispute or disputes raised by the Service Provider(s) in any suit or proceeding pending before any Court or Tribunal relating thereto our liability under this present being absolute and unequivocal. The payment so made by us under this bond shall be a valid discharge of our liability for payment thereunder and the Service Provider(s) shall have no claim against us for making such payment.								
7.	The liability of the Bank under this Guarantee shall not be affected by any change in the constitution of the Service Provider or of the Bank.								
8. 9.	This guarantee shall also be operable at ourbranch at New Delhi, from whom, confirmation regarding the issue of this guarantee or extension/ renewal thereof shall be made available on demand. In the contingency of this guarantee being invoked and payment thereunder claimed, the said branch shall accept such invocation letter and make payment of amounts so demanded under the said invocation. This bank guarantee shall be valid from								
10.	Notwithstanding anything contained herein:								
(i	i) Our liability under this Bank Guarantee shall not exceed `/-								
(i	ii) The Bank Guarantee shall be valid up to								
(i	We are liable to pay the Guarantee amount or any part thereof under this Guarantee only and only if you serve upon us a written claim or demand on or before								
Na	ame:								
Da	ate:								
	esignation: mployee Code Number:								
Te	elephone Number:								
Na	ame of issuing bank branch								

E-mail:

Name of controlling bank branch _____

Indian Highways Management Company Limited

...

Telephone number _____

E-mail: _____

^{*} The bank guarantee shall be verified through SFMS package.

Annexure H: Format for Financial Bid Submission

(For sample only, actual Format to be downloaded from e-tender portal for on-line submission)

RFP Ref: IHMCL/Traffic Survey/2020/01

Dear Sir,

I/We, the undersigned having examined the above referred RFP including addendums thereof and, hereby offer to submit our bid to undertake the subject assignment with total bid value as per break-up furnished below. L1 Bidder shall be selected on basis of final cost per zone (inclusive all taxes, levies etc. but will exclude GST)

Financial Proposal

a. <u>Zone-1 (J&K. Himachal Pradesh. Haryana, Punjab. Rajasthan, Uttarakhand, Gujarat, Delhi incl UT)</u>

Sl.No.	Name of Toll Plaza	Stretch	No. of Lanes	Final Cost for Traffic Survey (Excluding GST) (in Rs.)
1	Dappar Km 23.100	Ambala - Chandigarh (Zirakpur)	4-L	
2	Gharunda Km 146.40Km (earlier at 132 Karnal)	Panipat-Jallandhar	6-L	
3	Bhagwada Km 356.200	Surat - Dahisar	6-L	
4	Shahjahanpur Km 115	Gurgaon-Kotputli-Jaipur	6-L	
5	Gegal km 378.800	Kishangarh-Ajmer-Beawar	4-L	
6	Makrauli Kalan Village km14.600	Rohtak-Panipat	4-L	
7	Samakhiyali Km 309	Samakhiyali-Gandhidham	6-L	
8	Uthamam Km 202.315	Beawar- Pali- Pindwara	4-L	
9	Vadodara Km 86.1	A V Expressway	6-L	
10	Km 146.500 Bhatwada	Godhra - Gujarat / MP Border	4-L	

11	Km 430.000 (Gangaycha vill)	Rohtak - Bawal	4-L	
12	Km 238.170 Negadiya	Gomti Chauraha - Udaipur	4-L	
13	Km 96.000 Panipat	Panipat Elevated Highway	6-L	
14	Bhagan @ Km 53.600	Km 29.3 - Km 86.000	6-L	
15	Mokha at km44.500	Gandhidham (Kandla)- Mundra Port	4-L	

b. Zone-2 (Uttar Pradesh, Bihar, Orissa, Chhattisgarh, Jharkhand, Madhya Pradesh incl UT)

Sl.No.	Name of Toll Plaza	Stretch	No Of Lanes	Final Cost for Traffic Survey (Excluding GST) (in Rs.)
1	Khairabad Km 420	Lucknow - Sitapur	4-L	
2	Itaunja Km 467	Lucknow - Sitapur	4-L	
3	Sendhwa Km 141.85 (Jamli)	Khalghat - MP/Maharashtra Border	4-L	
4	Km 182.636 Kasahibahra (Dhank)	Orissa/Chattisgarh border- Aurang	4-L	
5	Barajod Km 438.300 (earlier Sikandara)	Etawah - Chakeri	6-L	
6	Km 591.00 On Indore Bypass Just after the flyover of the Junction at NH- 3 and indore Side	Indore-dewas	6-L	
7	Km 602.200 Govindpur (Murli)	Muzaffarnagar - Barauni	4-L	
8	Km 229.213 village Usaka in Jaluan district (Chameri)	Orai-Bara	4-L	

Page 66 of 74

9	Ghangari 346.100	Km 320.00 - Km 398.75	4-L	
10	Naini & Harro	Km 0.00 - Km 5.410 km 4.285 - Km 45.627	4-L	
11	Km 527.275 Badauri	Chakeri - Usrania	4-L	
12	Gurapalli 389.609	Sunakhala - Puintola	4-L	
13	Km 120.50 Katoghan	Fatehpur - Khokharaj	4-L	
14	Bhojpuri Km 97.516 at	Km 58.182 - Km 105.980	4-L	
	Total	•		

c. Zone-3 (Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, Tamil Nadu, Kerala, Goa incl UT)

Sl.No.	Name of Toll Plaza	Stretch	No. of Lanes	Final Cost for Traffic Survey (Excluding GST) (in Rs.)
1	Rasampalayam Km 259.500	Nammakal - Karur	4-L	
2	Eliyarpathy Km 143.580	Madurai - Tuticorin	4-L	
3	Pudurpandiapuram Km 254.940	Madurai - Tuticorin	4-L	
4	Valavanthankottai Km 120.900	Thanjavur - Trichy	4-L	
5	Valanchettiyur Km 338.000	Karur Bypass - Dindigul Bypass	4-L	
6	Pallikonda Km. 98.520	Krishnagiri - walajhapet	6-L	
7	Panthangi km 60.650 near village Panthangi	Hyderabad – Vijayawada	4-L	
8	Manavasi Km 198.500	Trichy-Karur	4-L	
9	Kaza Km 416.8 (new 1117.402)	Vijayawada – Chilakaluripet	6-L	
10	km 38.100 near village Gudur in	Hyderabad-Yadagiri (premium)	4-L	

Page 67 of 74

	Nalgonda district			
11	km 136.840 Kaniyur	Chengapalli - Coimbatore	4-L	
12	Athur Km 103.500	Km 74.50 - Km 121.00	4-L	
13	Nemili (Sriperumbadur) Km 37.800	Walajhapet - Poonamalai	6-L	
14	Surapattu Km.28.600	Chennai Bypass	4-L	
15	Kappalur Km 18.652	Madurai - Kaniyakumari	4-L	
16	Chennasamudram Km 104.900		6-L	
17	Nallur / Km 21.625	Chennai-Tada	6-L	
Total Cost (Final Cost)			-	

d. Zone-4 (All North East States, West Bengal, Assam, Maharashtra & Karnataka)

Sl.No.	Name of Toll Plaza	Stretch	No. of Lanes	Final Cost for Traffic Survey (Excluding GST) (in Rs.)
1	Km 32.700 (4 Side Plazas),ELEVATED SECTION	Silk Board Junction - Hosur	4-L	
2	Km 229.061 near vanagari vill.	Hungund - Hospet	4-L	
3	Karajeevanahally Km 104.530	Tumkur- Chitradurga	6-L	
4	Km 88.300 Krishnagiri	Hosur-Krishnagiri	6-L	
5	Jaladhulagori Km. 35.250	Dhankuni -kharagpur	6-L	
6	Km 482.600 Hirebagewadi	Belgum - Dharwad	6-L	
7	Mathani km. 523.400	Nagpur-Wainganga Bridge	4-L	
8	Km. 103.500 Rampura	Baleshwar to Kharagpur	6-L	

9	Km 507.00 Banaskopa	Barwa adda- Panagarh	6-L	
10	Km 217.450 near Gaddur (nangli)	Mulbagal-Karnataka / AP border	4-L	
11	Dhankuni Km 646.005	Palsit - Dhankuni	4-L	
12	Pimpalagoan B Km 390.450	Pimpalgoan - Nashik - Gonde	6-L	
13	Kognoli Km 591.24	Km 592.24 - Km 537	4-L	
14	Chalageri Km 288.200	Km 260.000 - Km 340.000	4-L	
Total Cost (Final Cost)				-

Annexure J: Format for Non-Disclosure Agreement

Page 69 of 74

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This Non-Disclosure Agreement (hereinafter called the "NDA") is made on this XXth day of the month of XXXXXXX, 2020.

BETWEEN

Indian Highways Management Company Limited (IHMCL), constituted under Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at NHAI, G 5 & 6, Sector 10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075 and Corporate Office at 2nd Floor, MTNL Building, Sector-19, Dwarka, New Delhi – 110075 (hereinafter referred to as the "**Disclosing Party**").

AND

WHEREAS

NOW IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

- 1 Definitions
- - a) "Confidential Information" shall mean all discussions, documents, paper, discs, technology, procedure and other information of a confidential nature pertaining to, generated or disclosed by either party in any form including in writing, electronically, computerized orally or otherwise marked as "Confidential" or informed to be 'Confidential' or relating to the Purpose, including, without limitation:
 - (i) All financial details investment plans, price specifications, schemes, technology know-how, techniques and information relating to business, investments, transactions or affairs, services being rendered, plans for business investments or for improving services and discussions on future services; and all other information, material or data relating to the current and /or future business and operations of the Disclosing Party and analysis, compilations, studies, summaries,

Page 70 of 74

- extracts or other documentation prepared by the Receiving Party arising out of the Confidential Information.
- (ii) the terms of this or any other agreement or document signed or to be signed by or between the Parties and the provisions thereof.

However, "Confidential Information" shall exclude any part of such disclosed information or data which: -

- i. is in or comes into the public domain in any way without breach of this Agreement by the Receiving Party; or
- ii. the Receiving Party can show (a) was in its possession or known to it by being in its use or being recorded in its files or computers or other recording media prior to receipt from the Disclosing Party and was not previously acquired by the Receiving Party from the Disclosing Party under an obligation of confidence, or (b) to have been developed by or for the Receiving Party at any time independently of any information disclosed to it by the Disclosing Party; or
- iii. the Receiving Party obtains from a source other than the Disclosing Party without breach by the Receiving Party or such source or any obligation of confidentiality or non-use towards the Disclosing Party; or
- iv. is hereafter furnished by the Disclosing Party to a third party without restriction on disclosure or use; or
- v. is disclosed by the Receiving Party (a) with the prior written approval of the Disclosing Party, or (b) without such approval, after a period of one (1) year from the date of receipt thereof.

2. Handling of Confidential Information

The Receiving Party shall maintain the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confidence and shall exercise in relation thereto no lesser security measures and degree of care than those which the Receiving Party applies to its own Confidential Information which the Receiving Party warrants as providing adequate protection against unauthorized disclosure, copying or use. The Receiving Party shall ensure that disclosure of such Confidential Information is restricted to those employees, directors, officers, representatives, advisors, consultants or agents (collectively referred to as "Representatives") of the Receiving Party having the need to know the same for the Purpose. Copies or reproductions shall not be made except to the extent reasonably necessary for the Purpose and all copies made shall be the property of the Disclosing Party. All Confidential Information and copies thereof shall be returned to the Disclosing Party within seven (7) days of receipt of a written request from the Disclosing Party.

The Receiving Party shall not attempt to reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble or reverse translate any Confidential Information provided by the Disclosing Party or discover the source code or trade secrets in any such Confidential Information.

Nothing in this Agreement shall limit the ability of a party to disclose such Confidential Information of the other party if such disclosure is (a) required to be made pursuant to any law or regulation, government authority, duly authorized subpoena or court order, whereupon that party shall provide prompt notice to the Disclosing Party of the Confidential Information in question, who will thereof have the opportunity to respond prior to such disclosure; (b) required to be made by a court or other tribunal in connection with the enforcement of such Disclosing Party's rights under this Agreement, or (c) is approved by the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party of the Confidential Information.

3. <u>Limitations and Warranty</u>

- a) The Receiving Party shall (i) not divulge the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information, in whole or in part, to any third party without the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party, (ii) use the same only for the Purpose, and (iii) make no commercial use of the same or any part thereof without the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party shall be entitled to make any disclosure required by law of the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information.
 - b) The Disclosing Party warrants its right to disclose its Confidential Information to the Receiving Party and to authorize the Receiving Party to use the same for the Purpose.

4. <u>Disclaimer</u>

All rights in Confidential Information are reserved by the Disclosing Party and no rights or obligations other than those expressly recited herein are granted or to be implied from this Agreement. In particular, no licence is hereby granted directly or indirectly under any invention, discovery, patent, copyright or other intellectual property right now or in the future held, made, obtained or licensable by either party. Nothing in this Agreement or its operation shall constitute an obligation on either party to enter into the aforesaid business relationship or shall preclude, impair or restrict either party from continuing to engage in its business otherwise that in breach of the terms of this Agreement.

5. Notices

All notices under this Agreement shall be in writing, sent by facsimile or first-class registered or recorded delivery post to the party being served at its address specified above or at such other address of which such party shall have given notice as aforesaid, and marked for the attention of that party's signatory of this Agreement. The date of service shall be deemed to be the day following the day on which the notice was transmitted or posted as the case may be.

6. No Bar on Participation in Projects initiated by the Disclosing Party

The Disclosing Party acknowledges that the advisory mandate awarded to the Receiving Party will not bar the Receiving Party or any of its group companies from bidding or participating in any projects initiated by the Disclosing Party on the ground that the Receiving Party was privy to information which was not within the public domain.

On its part the Receiving Party shall ensure, confirm and warrant that neither the Receiving Party nor any of its group companies will mis-use the information available to it in the course of the advisory mandate to derive an unfavorable advantage in bidding

/participation in any projects initiated by the Disclosing Party .The Disclosing Party on its part shall not summarily debar or reject the bid/participation of the Receiving Party on the ground that the Receiving Party was privy to confidential information and its has derived undue advantage , unless reasonable opportunity its given to the Receiving Party to put forth its say.

7. <u>Non-Assignment</u>

This Agreement is personal to the parties and shall not be assigned or otherwise transferred in whole or in part by either party without the prior written consent of the other party.

9. Forbearance

No relaxation, forbearance or delay by a party in enforcing any of the terms of this Agreement shall prejudice, affect or restrict its rights, nor shall waiver by a party of any breach hereof operate as a waiver of any subsequent or continuing breach.

10. Indemnity

The Receiving Party agrees to indemnify the Disclosing Party for any loss or damage suffered due to any breach by it of its obligations under this Agreement. Damages shall include all costs, expenses and attorney's fees incurred by the Disclosing Party in the enforcement of this Agreement. PROVIDED ALWAYS THAT IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL AND/OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, LOST BUSINESS, LOST SAVINGS OR LOST PROFITS OR REVENUES RESULTING FROM A BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT EVEN IF THE BREACHING PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE PROSSIBILITY OF THE OCURRENCE OF SUCH DAMAGES.

11. Non-Publicity

The parties shall not make any announcement or disclosure of any kind whatsoever concerning this Agreement, including without limitation the existence of this Agreement, without the other Party's prior written consent unless such announcement and/or disclosure is required by law.

- 12. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the obligations of the Parties herein shall continue for a period of one (1) year from the date of this Agreement or if a further agreement is entered into, the termination of such further agreement, whichever is the later.
- 13. The Receiving Party agrees that the obligations contained in this Agreement shall extend to the affiliated companies of the Receiving Party and to all its advisors and consultants. In this respect the Receiving Party represents that an agreement to keep such information confidential, on terms similar to this Agreement, is in place before disclosing any Confidential Information to such affiliate, advisor or consultant.

14. Entire Agreement

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the parties in respect of Confidential Information and supersedes all previous agreements, understandings and undertakings in such respect. This Agreement cannot be amended except by written agreement signed on behalf of each party by their authorized signatories.

15. <u>Dispute Resolution</u>

The parties shall attempt to resolve any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Agreement by mutual consultation, failing which such dispute shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration in India under the auspices and governed by the provisions of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996. The arbitration shall be at **Delhi** and only the courts at **Delhi** shall have the jurisdiction to try any matters arising from the arbitration. The language of the arbitration shall be in English.

16. Governing Law and Jurisdiction

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in all respects in accordance with the laws of India

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives on the day and year first above written

On bena	an or Disclosing Party	on benair of Receiving P	aı
Signatuı	re :	Signature :	
Name	:	Name :	
Title	:	Title :	